ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
Regular Board Meeting Agenda

Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 10, 2025
Time: 4:00PM
Location: Essex County Civic Centre

Council Chambers, 2" Floor
360 Fairview Avenue West
Essex, Ontario N8M 1Y6

Meeting will be held in person for Board Members and staff. Media representatives
and interested members of the general public are invited to attend in person.

LIST OF BUSINESS

1.
2.

Call to Order
Motion to Move In-Camera

Moved by:

Seconded by:

THAT the Board move into a closed meeting pursuant to Section 239
(2) (f), (k) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended for the following
reasons:

e (f) advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including
communications necessary for that purpose.

e (k) a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied
to any negotiations carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf
of the municipality or local board.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
Approval of the Minutes

A. July 9, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
Business Arising from the Minutes
Correspondence

There are no items for discussion.

PAGE NUMBERS

1-8




EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Agenda
September 10, 2025
Page 2 of 2

7.

10.

11.
12,

13.

14.

15.

Delegations
There are no delegations.
Waste Disposal

A. Tender award for the Regional Landfill Gas Collection System
Expansion

Waste Diversion

A. 2025 Green Bin Program: Promotion & Education Update

B. Circular Materials Response Re: Single Stream Recycling

C. Non-Eligible Source Recycling Program Update

Finance & Administration

A. Six-month Operations Financial Review - January to June 2025
New Business

Other Items

By-Laws

A. By-Law 14-2025
Being a By-Law to Authorize the Execution of an Agreement
with 2044970 Ontario Inc. o/a All Season Excavating for the
Regional Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion.

B. By-Law 15-2025
Being a By-Law to Confirm the Proceedings of the Meeting of
the Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority for
September 10, 2025.

Next Meeting Dates

Tuesday, October 7, 2025
Tuesday, November 4, 2025
Tuesday, December 2, 2025

Adjournment

9-13

14-23

24-36

37-40

41-45

46

47




ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
Regular Board Meeting

MINUTES
Meeting Date: Wednesday, July 9, 2025
Time: 4:00 PM
Location: Essex County Civic Centre

Council Chambers, 2" Floor
360 Fairview Avenue West
Essex, Ontario N8M 1Y6

Attendance

Board Members:
Gary McNamara -Chair
Hilda MacDonald
Rob Shepley
Kirk Walstedt
Gary Kaschak -Vice Chair
Kieran McKenzie
Jim Morrison

EWSWA Staff:
Michelle Bishop
Steffan Brisebois
Cathy Copot-Nepszy
Tom Marentette
Madison Mantha
Teresa Policella

City of Windsor Staff:
Tony Ardovini
Jim Leether
Brian Lima

County of Essex Staff:
Melissa Ryan
David Sundin

Claire Bebbington
Absent:

Drew Dilkens
Michael Akpata
Mark McKenzie
Mark Spizzirri

County of Essex
County of Essex
County of Essex
County of Essex
City of Windsor
City of Windsor
City of Windsor

General Manager

Manager of Finance & Administration
Manager of Waste Diversion
Manager of Waste Disposal

Project Lead

Executive Assistant

Deputy Treasurer Financial Planning
Manager of Environmental Services
Executive Director, Operations/Deputy City
Engineer

Director of Financial Services/Treasurer
Solicitor/Interim Director, Legislative and Legal
Services

Deputy County Solicitor, Legislative and Legal Services

City of Windsor (Ex-Officio)

County of Essex

City of Windsor

Manager of Performance Management and Business
Case Development

Page 1 of 8

Page 1 of 47



EWSWA Regular Board Meeting MINUTES
July 9, 2025
Page 2 of 8

1.

Call to Order
The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 PM.
Motion to Move In-Camera

Moved by Rob Shepley

Seconded by Kirk Walstedt

That the Board move into closed meeting pursuant to Section 239 (2) (f), (k) of
the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended for the following reasons:

e (f) advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including
communications necessary for that purpose.

e (k) a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any
negotiations carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf of the
municipality or local board.

60-2025
Carried
Moved by Kirk Walstedt
Seconded by Jim Morrison
That the EWSWA Board rise from the Closed Meeting at 4:09 PM.
63-2025
Carried

Declaration of Pecuniary Interest

The Chair called for any declarations of pecuniary interest, and none were
noted. He further expressed that should a conflict of a pecuniary nature or
other arise at any time during the course of the meeting that it would be noted
at that time.

Approval of the Minutes

Moved by Hilda MacDonald

Seconded by Gary Kaschak

That the minutes from the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority Regular
Meeting, dated June 3, 2025, be approved and adopted.

64-2025
Carried

Business Arising from the Minutes

No items were raised for discussion.

Page 2 of 47



EWSWA Regular Board Meeting MINUTES
July 9, 2025
Page 3 of 8

6.

Correspondence

A. June 26, 2025 e-mail from Charles O'Hara - Director, Resource
Recovery Policy Branch Environmental Policy Division, Ministry of the
Environment, Conservation and Parks Re: Proposed Amendments to the
Resource Recovery and Circular Economy Act, 2016 and Planning for
Small IC&I Collection

Moved by Hilda MacDonald
Seconded by Kieran McKenzie

e That the Board receive the correspondence as information.

65-2025
Carried

Delegations

A. Brent Langille, B.Sc., P.Geo., QPesa, Senior Technical Director /
Principal, RWDI
Presentation - Regional Landfill: Leachate Management

Mr. Langille was in attendance to present the Regional Landfill: Leachate
Management presentation. The General Manager noted that some of the same
information is also contained in the report related to Agenda Item 8A.

Upon conclusion of the presentation, discussion took place regarding the
current status of leachate management, the impact of greenhouse vines on
leachate management and the financial implications of a permanent leachate
treatment plant.

Further, discussion took place regarding the timeline for construction and
Ministry of the Environment approvals.

Waste Disposal

A. Regional Landfill Reverse Osmosis Leachate Treatment Plant
Status and Next Steps

In conjunction with the presentation, the purpose of the report was to provide
the Board with information regarding the Reverse Osmosis (RO) Leachate
Treatment Pilot Plant operation and recommendations for next steps. The
report provided details of efforts made to date with regard to long-term
permeate management and provided recommendations for next steps towards
a long-term full-scale facility.

Moved by Rob Shepley
Seconded by Kieran McKenzie

Page 3 of 47



EWSWA Regular Board Meeting MINUTES
July 9, 2025
Page 4 of 8

e That the Board receive the information contained in this report.

e That the Board approve proceeding with the permeate polishing pilot
study in collaboration with Rochem Americas Inc.

e That the Board approve proceeding with a Concentrate Management
Plan.

e That the Board direct Administration to report back with a procurement
strategy for the development of a long-term leachate management
facility.

e Brent left at 5:18 pm

66-2025
Carried

9. Waste Diversion
A. 2025 Green Bin Program: Promotion & Education (P&E) Update

The Manager of Waste Diversion provided a Green Bin Program P&E update. To
ensure consistent messaging, she recommended that the Board direct
Administration to provide a Green Bin Program Campaign Summary to the
Clerk’s Department at the City of Windsor, County of Essex and seven (7)
County Municipalities so that the document would be placed on Council
agendas as correspondence.

Delivery of the Green Bins will commence the week of July 21, 2025 to
approximately 120,000 single-family homes across the Essex-Windsor Region
and will continue through early October. The delivery schedule is available on
the Authority's website, www.ewswa.org. Residents are encouraged to
download the Recycle Coach app, as notifications regarding the program will be
sent via the app.

Authority staff have been meeting with all municipal partners regarding the
launch of the Green Bin program. Authority staff have also been actively
attending various events throughout the region.

The Chair asked if there were any questions.

Kieran McKenzie commented that the campaign has been very effective and
commended Administration on a job well done.

Mr. Morrison also commented that the campaign has been a very
comprehensive program.

Mr. Kaschak commended the team and is proud to have been a part of the
social media rollout event today.

Moved by Gary Kaschak
Seconded by Rob Shepley

Page 4 of 47


http://www.ewswa.org/

EWSWA Regular Board Meeting MINUTES
July 9, 2025
Page 5 of 8

e That the Board receive this report as information.

e That the Board direct Authority Administration to provide a Green Bin
Program: Campaign Summary, as applicable to the Clerk’s Department at
the City of Windsor, County of Essex and seven (7) County Municipalities.

67-2025
Carried

10. Finance & Administration
A. 2025-2026 EWSWA Insurance

The Manager of Finance provided the Board an update on the Authority's
comprehensive insurance program renewal for the period of July 1, 2025 to
June 30, 2026.

The Chair asked if there were any questions. No questions were asked.

Moved by Kirk Walstedt
Seconded by Hilda MacDonald
That the Board receive this report as information.

68-2025
Carried

B. 2025 Six-Month Update - IC&I Tipping Fee & Tonnage

The Manager of Finance provided an update on the 2025 Industrial,
Commercial and Institutional (IC&I) six-month tipping fee revenue and
tonnages, as the 2025 Budget is anticipated to be negatively impacted due to
the reduction in tonnage of greenhouse vines. He noted that Administration will
continue to monitor and provide an update at a future meeting.

The Chair asked if there were any questions. No questions were asked.

Moved by Kieran McKenzie
Seconded by Gary Kaschak
That the Board receive this report as information.

69-2025
Carried

C. Procurement Policy EW-008 Revision

The Manager of Finance stated that the purpose of the report was to
recommend that the existing Procurement Policy EW-008 ("Policy") be revised
to include sections and wording that clarify and strengthen the Authority's legal

Page 5 of 47



EWSWA Regular Board Meeting MINUTES
July 9, 2025
Page 6 of 8

11.

12.

position when procuring for Goods and Services and when disposing of surplus
assets. The revision also includes the adoption of a "Buy Canadian" policy.

The Chair asked if there were any questions.

Mr. Morrison asked how much the Authority procures from the United States
(US) and if there are significant purchases that will have to be made from the
United States.

The General Manager stated that the Authority procures most services locally,
but some operating materials are purchased from US vendors due to lack of
availability or cost. She provided examples of previous purchases from the US.
She stated that for some items, it may be possible to obtain the products from
within Canada. However, it will be difficult to purchase specialized or heavy
equipment in Canada, as there are no Canadian companies with manufacturing
facilities within Canada.

There were no further questions.

Moved by Jim Morrison
Seconded by Rob Shepley
That the Board approve the revised Procurement Policy EW-008.

70-2025
Carried

New Business
No items were raised for discussion.
Other Items

The General Manager acknowledged that Project Manager, Madison Mantha,
has resigned as she is relocating to Guelph. She noted that Ms. Mantha
assisted with the wind-up of the Blue Box program, roll out of the Green Bin
Program as well as other projects. She thanked Ms. Mantha for all of her
contributions.

Ms. Mantha thanked everyone for the acknowledgment and noted that there is
so much opportunity for this region.

On behalf of the Board, the Chair wished Ms. Mantha all the best.

Page 6 of 47



EWSWA Regular Board Meeting MINUTES
July 9, 2025
Page 7 of 8

13. By-Laws
A. By-Law 13-2025

Moved by Gary Kaschak

Seconded by Hilda MacDonald

That By-Law 13-2025, being a By-law to Confirm the Proceedings of the Board
of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority be given three readings and be
adopted this 9t day of July, 2025.

71-2025
Carried

14. Next Meeting Dates

Wednesday, August 13, 2025
Wednesday, September 10, 2025
Tuesday, October 7, 2025
Tuesday, November 4, 2025
Tuesday, December 2, 2025

15. Adjournment

Moved by Rob Shepley
Seconded by Kirk Walstedt
THAT the Board stand adjourned at 5:41 PM.
72-2025
Carried

Page 7 of 47



EWSWA Regular Board Meeting MINUTES
July 9, 2025
Page 8 of 8

All of which is respectfully submitted.

Gary McNamara
Chair

Michelle Bishop
General Manager

Page 8 of 47



ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
Administrative Report

August 28, 2025

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste
Authority
From: Michelle Bishop, General Manager

Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 10, 2024

Subject: 2025 Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion-Award

Purpose

To recommend that the Essex-Windsor Regional Landfill (herein referred to as
“Landfill”) Gas Collection System Expansion Contract be awarded to 2044970
Ontario Inc. o/a All Season Excavating (herein referred to as "All Season
Excavating") at a cost of $518,136.70 plus HST.

Background

During 2008, twenty-one (21) gas extraction wells were installed at the Landfill,
forming the initial phase of the existing landfill gas collection, capture, and
recovery project. An additional four (4) gas extraction wells were added in 2009.
Full-time operation of the Landfill’s LFG Collection and Flare System began in
January 2009, using a portable candlestick flare and a network of above-ground,
corrugated, Big “"O"” pipes. In June 2009, the candlestick flare was replaced with a
permanent enclosed flare with a higher destruction efficiency.

In October 2024, Comcor Environmental Ltd. (herein after referred to as
"Comcor") provided the Authority with two conceptual wellfield expansion layouts
with capital construction budget estimates for further expansion of the gas
collection system. Based on the budget allocation, it was decided to proceed with
the installation of a lateral collection pipe across the east side of Cell 1 (referred to
as Lateral 1-5).

Page 1 of 3
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Tender Award
Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion at Regional Landfill Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 9 of 47



Tender Award for Landfill Gas Collection System at the Regional Landfill
September 10, 2025
Page 2 of 4

On May 19th, 2025, the Authority engaged Comcor to provide detailed engineering,
technical specifications, tender documents, and project management support for
this expansion at a cost of $81,301 CAN plus HST.

Discussion

Currently, landfill gas emissions are regulated provincially. Under Ontario
Regulation 347, landfill owners are obligated to collect landfill gas in portions of
the Site that have reached maximum capacity or have not received waste during
the preceding six months. The area of the 2025 Landfill Gas Expansion at the
Regional Landfill is part of Cell 1, Cell 2 North and Cell 2 South. This area of the
landfill has been at the final grade elevations with final cover for approximately
one year. As such, to meet compliance obligations, the Authority should be
expanding as much LFG collection infrastructure into the vicinity as early as
possible.

In 2024, the federal government made progress towards regulating landfill gas by
releasing for comment Regulations Respecting the Reduction in the Release of
Methane (Waste Sector). The draft regulations target a 50% reduction in methane
emissions by 2030 (from 2019 levels) and would require landfill owners to monitor
and control methane concentrations, limit venting, capture and utilize landfill gas,
and detect and repair methane leaks. On July 28, 2025 in accordance with the
Authority’s Procurement Policy, RFT 2025-07-28 (hereinafter referred to as the
"Tender") was issued for the 2025 Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion at the
Essex-Windsor Regional Landfill Site and posted on Bids and Tenders and the
Authority’s website. Fifteen contractors downloaded the Tender documents. An
optional site visit was held on August 5, 2025 and was attended by two (2)
contractors.

The Tender closed on August 15, 2025 and bids were submitted by All Season
Excavating from Watford, Ontario, A. VanEgmond Construction (2005) Ltd. from
Smithville, Ontario, Les Enterprises Forlam Inc. from Boisbriand, Quebec, and NPL
Canada Ltd. from Woodbridge, Ontario.

With the assistance of Comcor, all submissions were reviewed for compliance with
the specifications contained in the Tender. One bidder was disqualified for failing
to bid work in accordance with the technical specifications, which is in
contravention to Clause 5.1. This clause indicates that ‘Submissions may be
deemed non-compliant or be rejected for failure to fulfil procedural or content
requirements stipulated in this RFT.’

The lowest compliant bid was submitted by All Season Excavating. The Contract is
expected to commence no later than October 17, 2025 and must be substantially

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Tender Award
Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion at Regional Landfill Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 10 of 47



Tender Award for Landfill Gas Collection System at the Regional Landfill
September 10, 2025
Page 3 of 4

completed by December 11, 2025 or 40 working days from mobilization (whichever
occurs earlier).

The work tendered includes the drilling and installation of five (5) new extraction
wells to collect additional landfill gas and connect to the existing landfill gas
transmission pipes to the flaring system. Infrastructure includes lateral and sub-
lateral piping, well heads, flow control assemblies and drain traps. Following
installation, the contractor shall restore the construction area and repair any final
cover affected by the work. Restoration will include topsoil, final grading, erosion
control blankets and seeding, such that all surfaces are returned to pre-
construction conditions.

Provisional work included the installation of two (2) additional extraction wells and
associated ancillary equipment. This cost was not included in the cost comparison.

The increased landfill gas collection will prompt a review of the on-site surplus gas
management practices. One potential option to reuse this gas would involve the
further concentration of the ‘concentrate’ generated through the treatment of
leachate in the RO system. This process would reduce shipping volumes and
associated costs. This can be done directly using the gas as a fuel, or indirectly by
generating electricity from the gas and using that power to operate an evaporator.
Other options, such as gas scrubbing and the subsequent injection into the
regional gas grid, shall also be assessed for viability.

Financial Implications

The 2025 Operational Plan and Budget allocated $500,000.00 for the expansion of
the Landfill Gas Collection System, with the project cost being funded from the
Regional Landfill Reserve.

Administration is recommending that the provisional scope of work be included as
part of the tender award, as the additional work will bring the Authority closer to
achieving full compliance with Ontario Regulation 347.
The breakdown of project costs is as follows:

« Engineering and construction support from Comcor: $81,301.00 + HST

« Tendered work under RFT 2025-07-28: $456,716.70 + HST

o Provisional work: $61,420.00 + HST

The total tender award, including the provisional work, is $518,136.70 + HST.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Tender Award
Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion at Regional Landfill Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 11 of 47



Tender Award for Landfill Gas Collection System at the Regional Landfill
September 10, 2025
Page 4 of 4

The total project cost is $599,437.70 + HST, which exceeds the budget by
$99,437.70. This additional amount will also be funded from the Regional Landfill
Reserve.

Recommendation

That the Board award RFT 2025-07-28 for the Regional Landfill Gas Collection
System Expansion Contract to 2044970 Ontario Inc. o/a All Season Excavating,
with an upset limit in the amount of $518,136.70 (plus HST) and that the Chair and
General Manager be authorized to enter into an agreement in accordance with the
tender documents.

Submitted By
Michelle Bishop, General Manager

Attachment: 2025 Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion (Drawing)

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Tender Award
Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion at Regional Landfill Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 12 of 47



2025 Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion

July 7, 2025 4:40:09 PM

Well Schedule
June 18, 2025

2008-2009 / sy Northing(m)  Eastingim} G"fi‘“‘" L;‘;se h:::il ’ e Dje::ln et

W W :

romsue 20 2 5 Designation crasll. ol e (m} et
25 We”s |nSta“ed 345384776 4661444488 118 1348 1/78 750 1650
Pro posed We ” 345414.913 1661381156 2002 778 160.8 90.0 15.0
5453981  4651438.853 2133 1872 1802 750 150
1 345423.27 4661501266 2123 1835 1855 80.0 150
Expa n S I O n 345393.276 4561563.039 2003 924 1954 anu 1L
208.9 1797 ano 160
208.4 180.9 /0.0 15,0
o w
cvalion s e depth grade alwel e 8 meters abuve belom of landfill bse,
ST e R slarls 4 iretors bolow grude el
3. Drli depth o be field determined basec on leachate levels encountered during drilling.
4.*Previsional
g DG WE
LEGEND
GRAMTY DRAN TRAP
StE et
""" CE=] \ R DEschno 15, 8¢
RENOVATED, SEE OETAL
|
2 0 2 4 o BeSunon, S DL H
|
Lateral Collection N N
. | CTETE:
Pipe Installed s e o |

ST
X ® :
FLOW CONTROL.

H
S

Scoes

e 0 100 1

[ REVISION LDw, | CHx, |
= e T AN A COMCOR 2025 LANDFILL GAS
TENDER ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY
iz ESD TR L 07, 3B O s T ol @ e v . v, B, domam. o 119 COLLECTION SYSTEM EXPANSION
: ENVIRONMENTAL LIMITED e (B18) TPE-Bid1 1-B00-SHI-33TT A: (B19) TTE-8TT0
H Consulting Engineers and Landfil Gas Specialists
320 Pinebush Road, Suite 12, Cambridge, Ontario N1T 126 9 DRAWING # W1002
tel (519) 621-6669 | fax (519) 621-9944 PROPOSED SYSTEM LAYOUT

Page 13 of 47



ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
Administrative Report

September 4, 2025

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste
Authority
From: Catharine Copot-Nepszy, Manager of Waste Diversion

Meeting Date: n Wednesday, September 10, 2025

Subject: 2025 Green Bin Program: Promotion & Education (P&E)
Update

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to provide the Authority Board with an update on the
Promotion and Education (P&E) Program Plan and that the Board direct Authority
Administration to share a Green Bin Program: Campaign Summary, where
applicable, with the Clerk’s Department of the City of Windsor (City), the County
of Essex (County) and seven (7) County Municipalities.

Background

Authority Administration has been sharing regular updates at Authority Board
meetings and monthly Municipal Working Group meetings that consist of
administrators from the City, the County and the seven (7) County Municipalities
through out 2025. Administration has also discussed this program at the Regional
CAO meeting, and other municipal tables. Furthermore, it has been working
closely with communication contacts from each municipality to enhance residential
reach through municipal forums.

As shared at the most recent Authority Board meeting, in order the ensure that
municipalities are up-to-date on the latest Green Bin Program information,
Authority Administration is creating a Campaign Summary to align with each
milestone outlined in the Green Bin Program P&E Plan. This summary will be
shared with the Authority Board and then sent through to the Clerk’s Department
of the City of Windsor (City), the County of Essex (County) and seven (7) County
Municipalities so that its municipal partners are well informed.

Page 1 of 11
H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - 2025 Green Bin
Program P&E Update Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 14 of 47



2025 Green Bin Program: Promotion & Education (P&E) Update
September 4, 2025
Page 2 of 3

Discussion

As the Green Bin Delivery Program is nearly sixty percent complete with Phase 1
households, it is time to get residents ready for the next big milestone - collection!
Campaign 4: Green Bin Collection Begins! will support residents to get ready for
Green Bin collection service. This campaign will begin in late September and run
until December. Specifically, it will share information such as: when collection
begins, tips to be ready, Green Bin set-out, Acceptable Materials in the Green Bin,
etc. To ensure this messaging is consistent across the region, it will be published
to municipal partners and stakeholders through the Green Bin Program: Campaign
Summary that is attached to this report.

Financial Implications

There are no direct or immediate financial implications associated with this report,
as the cost to develop and roll out this P&E Plan for the Green Bin Program was
included in the 2025 Operational Plan and Budget.

Recommendation
That the Board receive this report as information.

That the Board direct Authority Administration to provide a Green Bin Program:
Campaign Summary, as applicable to the Clerk’s Department at the City of
Windsor, County of Essex and seven (7) County Municipalities.

Submitted By

%ﬁ@@’k/ |

Catharine Copot-Nepszy, Manager of Waste Diversion

Attachment: Green Bin Program: Campaign 4 Summary - Green Bin Collection
Begins!

H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - 2025 Green Bin
Program P&E Update Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 15 of 47



2025 Green Bin Program: Promotion & Education (P&E) Update
September 4, 2025
Page 3 of 3

Figure 1. Graphic display of the five campaigns that are scheduled at key
milestones in 2025 for the Green Bin Program launch.

GREEN BIN P&E PROPOSED PLAN
Inform, Engage, Connect

CAMPAIGN 1 CAMPAIGN 2 CAMPAIGN 3 T CAMPAIGN 4 CAMPAIGN 5
Grow Green in Grow Green with The Green Bins Green Bin How are we
2025: Rebrand & the Green Team are Coming! Program Launch doing & Winter

Green Bin Coming July-October September- October Tips

December
' ¥
of

Starts
Week
October

21st

>

ewsWa

GBP COMMUNNITY ENGAGEMENT

(pop-ups, evenls, viFteal open houses, &lc.)

May - October

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - 2025 Green Bin
Program P&E Update Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 16 of 47




360 FAIRVIEW AVE. W., SUITE 211
ESSEX, ON N8M 3G4
1-800-563-3377

www.ewswa.org / ask@ewswa.org

ewswa

ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

Green Bin Program

Campaign 4 Summary: Green Bin Collection Begins!
September 5, 2025

“"Hip, Hip, Hooray” to Essex-Windsor residents who have been great with receiving
their new Green Bins — Green Bin Delivery is 70% complete! As October approaches, it
is timely for residents to “"Get Your GREEN ON” as collection begins the week of October
21, 2025. Single-family homes in Phase 1 municipalities: Essex, LaSalle, Lakeshore,
LaSalle, Tecumseh and Windsor will finally be able to keep their food waste and other
organics out of the garbage by simply using the Green Bin. By using the new Green Bin
Program, residents extend the life of our local landfill, avoid high costs of siting a new
one, and support the agriculturally-rich lands that serve us.

6 things residents should know to be ready for Green Bin collection:
o Your collection day. Download the Recycle Coach App, check your municipal
calendar or visit www.ewswa.org for your weekly collection schedule.
o Your set-out time. Always set out your Green Bin by 6 AM, so that you don’t
miss the collection truck.
“How-To-" Green Bin It! Check out your Starter Kit to be ready for collection.
Bin and Bag. Only the EWSWA Green Bin and compostable bag(s) can be used.
Set-out Matters: Park-Point-Space (P-P-S). Due to automated collection, you
must:
o PARK the Green Bin about 30 cm behind the curb;
o POINT the arrows on the Green Bin lid towards the street; and
o SPACE the Green Bin at least 1 metre from other carts/structures.
o Start Thanksgiving weekend! Fill your belly with food and the Green Bin with
food waste this Thanksgiving weekend, which will in turn help grow next year’s
harvest!

What to Expect During Collection: Once a resident has properly set out their Green
Bin by 6 AM on their collection day, the contractor will service the Green Bin using
automated collection. Participation will be tracked, as well as how successful residents
are with set-out and only placing Acceptable Materials in their Green Bin. Residents
should keep an eye out for an OOPS! or Gold Star stickers that will give them feedback
on their participation so that they can continue to Grow Green with the Green Bin.



http://www.ewswa.org/

360 FAIRVIEW AVE. W., SUITE 211
ESSEX, ON N8M 3G4
1-800-563-3377

www.ewswa.org / ask@ewswa.org

ewswa

ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

CUSTOMER SERVICE SUPPORT:

To ensure residents receive quick customer support and accurate information, please
adhere to the following:

Before collection begins, if a household in a Phase 1 municipality did not receive a
Green Bin by October 15t or there is an issue with their Green Bin, they are to contact
the EWSWA at 1-800-563-3377 for support.

After collection begins, residents are to contact the following for Green Bin support:
e City of Windsor residents: Call 311
e County of Essex residents: Call the EWSWA @ 1-800-563-3377 or visit ewswa.org

If a resident is not part of the Green Bin Phase 1 launch (Amherstburg, Kingsville, and
Leamington), they can still Grow Green by visiting www.ewswa.org for more Green Tips.

Finally, the EWSWA'’s annual EnviroTips Newsletter will reach over 150,000 households
this October to remind residents that Green Bin collection is coming.

Kk 3k >k 5k 5k 3k >k >k 5k 5Kk >k >k 5k 5k Kk >k 5k 5Kk >k >k 5k Kk >k >k 5k 5k >k >k >k 5k Kk >k 5K 5k Kk >k 5k 5k 3k >k 5k 5k 3k >k >k 5k 5k >k 5k 5k 5k >k >k 5k 5k Kk >k >k >k Kk >k >k >k >k >k >k >k >k >k >k

Below are some sample ads for Phase 1 and Phase 2 municipalities so that they can
share Campaigh 4 messaging on digital displays or internally with staff. Campaign 5
messaging, “Stay Green This Winter”, will be published in early October for your team
and so on for Campaign 5.

If you need assistance with ad formatting, please reach out directly to Cat Griffin,
Communications Coordinator, via email: cgriffin@ewswa.org.



http://www.ewswa.org/
mailto:cgriffin@ewswa.org

ewswa

ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

AD HEADLINES & COPY

Collection Starts Week of October 21.
Food Waste Is Too Good To Waste! Collection
starts the week of October 21st. Visit
www.ewswa.org/curbside-collection/green-bin
for your municipal calendar or use the Recycle
Coach app to find your weekly collection day
and the latest program information.
Remember don’t start to use your Green Bin
until the week before collection begins. Start
filling your Green Bin this Thanksgiving!

Check Out Your New Green Bin And
Starter Kit.

You got your Green Bin — now what? Start by
reading the information on the Welcome
Sticker. Inside your Green Bin, you will also
find a Kitchen Catcher, "How-To"” guide,
sample compostable liner, and more to get
you started. If you have questions, visit:
www.ewswa.org or call the

EWSWA @ 1-800-567-3377.

Ready, Set, Go...for Collection

Store your Green Bin in a safe place and don't
use it until the week before your collection
begins. Be sure to write your address on your
Bin. Remember not to use your Green Bin for
any other collection program, as this is the
only bin that can be used for the Green Bin
Program! When its time to start using it, stage
it in a location that is easy to access and keep
the lid closed when not in use. For more
information, visit www.ewswa.org

360 FAIRVIEW AVE. W., SUITE 211
ESSEX, ON N8M 3G4
1-800-563-3377

www.ewswa.org / ask@ewswa.org

GRAPHICS

r

Collection Starts
& Week Of
: . Oct. 21

Green Bin Your
Food Waste!

Wow! A Food Waste
Starter Kit.

& Gu

To help you keep
food waste out of
the garbage

ewsiva.org

L. What Do | Do With

My Bin Before
Collection Starts?

o Store it in a safe place o Keep the lid closed

o Do notuse until the week e Stageitin alocation
before your first collection  that’s easy to access

e Don't use it for any other
collection program

ewsiva.org



http://www.ewswa.org/
http://www.ewswa.org/
http://www.ewswa.org/

ewswa

ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

AD HEADLINES & COPY

What Goes in the Bin? What Doesn’t?

It is very important that only Acceptable
Materials are put into the Green Bin so that a
valuable fertilizer can be created for next
year’s crops. This includes food waste and
many organic materials like food-soiled paper
containers and compostable bags (used as
liners). Other items including yard waste, cat
litter, plastics, metals and styrofoam are NOT
ACCEPTABLE in the Bin. Visit www.ewswa.org
for a full list of Acceptable Materials.

GREEN TIP! If you have fats, oils, grease
(FOG), put them in a paper cup with a paper
towel to absorb liquids and chill it in the fridge
before transferring to the Green Bin just
before collection.

Get Ready For Collection.

Review your “How-To Guide” to get familiar
with the program. Set up your kitchen to
make it easy to keep food waste out of the
garbage. Consider using compostable bags,
since plastic can’t be used. Try to stage your
Green Bin in a convenient location. Finally, be
sure to know how to properly set out your
Green Bin and what date your weekly
collection begins. Visit www.ewswa.org for
more information.

360 FAIRVIEW AVE. W., SUITE 211
ESSEX, ON N8M 3G4
1-800-563-3377

www.ewswa.org / ask@ewswa.org

GRAPHICS

- 5 ewsiva.org

I'd Love to GreenBin It -
But What Goes In It?

L]

Get Ready FOIfgﬂ
Collection

Check Your
“How To”
Guide



http://www.ewswa.org/curbside-collection/green-bin/
http://www.ewswa.org/curbside-collection/green-bin/

ewswa

ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

AD HEADLINES & COPY

A Kitchen Catcher - to Catch Food Waste.
The Kitchen Catcher (KC) that you received
with your Green Bin will help you collect food
waste in your kitchen. To be tidy, you can line
it with a compostable bag, such as the sample
you received. Place the Kitchen Catcher in a
convenient location to gather Acceptable
Materials. When ready, tie the bag and place
it into your Green Bin. Dishwash your KC and
get ready for the next collection day. For
more information, visit Error! Hyperlink reference
not valid.

Phase 2 Collection Starts in Fall 2026

If you live in a single-family household in a
Phase 2 municipality (Amherstburg,
Kingsville, or Leamington), your Green Bin
program will not launch until the fall of
2026.

But you can still Grow Green with us! For tips
on how to easily manage your food waste and
organics, connect with us on Facebook,
Instagram or X, or visit www.ewswa.org. Stay
current on other waste collection dates and
program updates by downloading the Recycle
Coach app.

Green Tips to Reduce Odours.

Empty your Kitchen Catcher regularly and
clean it between uses - it's dishwasher safe!
Use your weekly collection even if your Green
Bin is not full. Keep all lids closed when not in
use. Visit www.ewswa.org for more Green
Tips.

360 FAIRVIEW AVE. W., SUITE 211
ESSEX, ON N8M 3G4
1-800-563-3377

www.ewswa.org / ask@ewswa.org

GRAPHICS

A Kitchen
Catcherto
Catch Food

Woaste

| -
| am Phose 2.

I i " =
WhiatiGan)iaoz:
The Green Bin program
for Phase 2 municipalities™

starts in Fall 2026.

Visit www ewswa.org
for tips to reduce and
handle your food waste
2 4

[ —

Y AMRSTOURG KD

Green Tips to
Keep It Fresh

o Empty Kitchen Catcher regularly

¢ Clean between use (it's dishwasher safe!)
¢ Set Bin out weekly, even it's not full.

¢ Always keep lids closed



http://www.ewswa.org/
http://www.ewswa.org/curbside-collection/green-bin/

ewswa

ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

AD HEADLINES & COPY

Stay Up-To-Date!

Download the Recycle Coach app (available
for Android and iOS) to get the latest Green
Bin collection schedule and program updates.
You can also get collection notices for garbage
and other collection programs. Visit
www.recyclecoach.com to download.

STAY
INTHE
KNOW

Download the Recycle Coach
app for your collection
schedules and any program
changes.

360 FAIRVIEW AVE. W., SUITE 211
ESSEX, ON N8M 3G4
1-800-563-3377

www.ewswa.org / ask@ewswa.org

GRAPHICS

&7 recycle
 coach

vy

ewsiva.org

BILLBOARD CAMPAIGNS

The following billboards (in both static and digital form) will be placed throughout Windsor and
Essex County during September and October, and some locations will be posted longer due to

contractual requirements (e.g., 6 months).

GETWITHIT.
reen Bin It'

For Bin Delivery Info:
ewsiia.org ‘; recycle

),
wn

* ESSEX, LAKESHORE, LASALLE, TECUMSEH, WINDSOR



http://www.recyclecoach.com/

ewswa

ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

WeAIIWin 1 Green Bin

P FOOD WASTE COLLECTION
L =2 = STARTS IN OCTOBER «

For Bin Delivery Info:
ewslia.org <, eyl
C=mrER

BE A GREEN SUPERHERO.

Green Bin Your
r Food Waste!

For Bin Delivery Info:
ewsWa.org % S35
C=BES

* ESSEX, LAKESHORE, LASALLE, TECUMSEH, WINDSOR

360 FAIRVIEW AVE. W., SUITE 211
ESSEX, ON N8M 3G4
1-800-563-3377

www.ewswa.org / ask@ewswa.org




ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
Administrative Report

August 28, 2025

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste
Authority
From: Michelle Bishop, General Manager

Catharine Copot-Nepszy, Manager of Waste Diversion
Meeting Date: @ Wednesday, September 10, 2025

Subject: Circular Materials Response Re. Single-Stream Recycling

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to provide information to the Board regarding
discussions held with Circular Materials (CM) regarding concerns stemming from
the change from a dual-stream recycling system to a single-stream recycling
system effective January 1, 2026, for all Eligible Sources (ES) in the City of
Windsor (Windsor) and the seven County of Essex (County) municipalities.

Background

As previously reported to the Board, CM has confirmed that the Essex-Windsor
region will be changing to a cart-based single-stream recycling system in 2026.
Further, Authority Administration was advised that they intend to distribute blue
95-gallon carts to households in the fall of 2025 to support their January 2026
launch. Authority Administration has previously detailed the actions taken to
engage with CM’s administration in an attempt to resolve several questions and
concerns about the logistics and impacts of switching to a single-stream program
in January 2026. This includes letters to CM officials, with the letters being signed
by the Authority Chair, Vice-Chair and General Manager.

CM is ultimately responsible for administering the Common Collection System
(CCS) in Ontario on behalf of producers effectively and efficiently to reach capture
targets set out in the Blue Box Regulation.

On Friday, May 23, 2025, CM responded to the Authority’s letter dated March 19,
2025. In addition to not providing a response to a humber of concerns identified in

Page 1 of 5
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Circular
Materials Response Re Single Stream Recycling Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 24 of 47



Circular Materials Response Re. Single-Stream Recycling
August 28, 2025
Page 2 of 7

the letter, CM changed direction from previous communications regarding
resident-owned containers and excess material.

The latest letter stated that current resident-owned carts, even if they are
compatible with their automated collection vehicles, will not be serviced in their
new 2026 collection program. CM’s new carts will include RFID identification and
tracking systems, etc.

The letter also stated that their 95-gallon carts offer adequate storage, “which is
greater than the current blue box storage capacity of four blue boxes over a two-
week collection cycle.” Further noted was that households that periodically
generate more material than the 95-gallon cart can store their excess material
until the next collection. Those who regularly exceed the 95-gallon cart capacity
may contact GFL for an assessment to determine eligibility for a second cart.

Given the above, Administration noted concerns with CM’s approach and its ability
to meet the requirements set out in the regulation as follows:

1. Provision of adequate blue box receptacles
Under the Blue Box Regulation, CM is required to:
22.(c) provide blue box receptacles for the storage of blue box material at
the residence until the blue box material is collected and, when it has
provided such receptacles, shall
(i) provide blue box receptacles that are appropriate for the residence,
including with respect to size [emphasis added],
(iii) ensure that each residence has a blue box receptacle that is able to
ordinarily store all of the blue box material deposited at that
residence until the next collection day [emphasis added]

2. Collection of all blue box materials set out
Under the Blue Box Regulation, CM is required to:
22(b) collect, in a single day, all blue box materials set out for curbside
collection at the residence [emphasis added]

By not allowing residents to use existing carts when the CM-issued 95-gallon cart
does not meet their needs, residents will be left with excess material and without
an adequate blue box receptacle.

Further, requesting that residents hold recyclables until the next collection does
not fulfill the obligation to collect all blue box materials as required by legislation.
While Administration is encouraged by CM and Green for Life Environmental Inc.’s
(GFL) change in plan to provide an additional cart to households that regularly
generate excess material when qualifications are met, the process will be lengthy
(over two collection cycles) and frustrating for residents, especially if they do not
have storage space. In the meantime, advising residents to retain excess material
is not a compliant or practical interim solution.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Circular
Materials Response Re Single Stream Recycling Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 25 of 47



Circular Materials Response Re. Single-Stream Recycling
August 28, 2025
Page 3 of 7

Lastly, CM’s decision to provide only one (1), 95-gallon cart to a household does
not appear to align with the regulatory requirement to provide adequate blue box
receptacles, particularly with respect to accessibility. Offering only one cart size
fails to account for residents with mobility limitations who may be unable to
manage larger bins. This type of accessibility accommodation is a common
consideration among municipalities when designing and implementing waste
collection systems.

The following steps were identified to address the above concerns:

e Provide a response to CM outlining the Administration’s outstanding
concerns noted above.

e Authority Administration to request a meeting the Resource Productivity
Recovery Authority (RPRA) regarding the concerns to meet the regulatory
obligations noted above.

e Authority Chair, Vice-Chair and Administration are meeting with Windsor-
Tecumseh MPP Andrew Dowie, Parliamentary Assistant to the Minister of the
Environment, Conservation and Parks on June 18, 2025, to discuss this topic
as well as concerns related to Non-Eligible Sources (NES).

A response was sent to CM on July 2, 2025, a copy has been included as an
attachment.

The meeting was held with MPP Dowie on June 18 as noted above. The meeting
was positive, and MPP Dowie was receptive to the Authority’s concerns and
committed to follow-up discussions.

With the information provided below, Authority Administration has not yet
requested a meeting with the RPRA.

Discussion

On July 16, 2025, CM staff requested a meeting with Authority Administration to
attempt to address the items noted above through recent communication to CM.
The following summarizes the discussions that took place.

Cart Compatibility

« CM has confirmed implementation of 95-gallon carts equipped with RFID
tags to facilitate automated collection and tracking.

o CM will not permit the use of non-compatible carts in the program; only their
standardized carts will be serviced, mirroring the approach used in the
EWSWA Green Bin Program (GBP).

« CM acknowledged their responsibility to provide clear and timely
communication to residents regarding this transition.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Circular
Materials Response Re Single Stream Recycling Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 26 of 47



Circular Materials Response Re. Single-Stream Recycling
August 28, 2025
Page 4 of 7

Requests for Additional Carts

A process will be established between CM and the contractor (GFL) to assess
and validate household requests for an additional cart.

Households will be evaluated over two collection cycles to determine
eligibility for a second cart.

If eligibility is confirmed, the additional cart will be provided at no cost to the
resident.

CM to confirm whether additional carts will be delivered directly to the
residence or if residents will be required to pick them up.

Authority Administration has identified that for households who currently
recycle close to a 95-gallon cart worth of material, it will be a challenge to
nestle rigid fibre materials (e.g., cardboard) with the various shapes and
materials of container materials effectively over a two-week cycle, such that
these materials fit within one (1) 95-gallon cart.

Blue Box (BB) Repair and Request Program (New)

The contractor (GFL) will be responsible for maintaining the condition of the
carts.

A repair/replacement program similar to the current EWSWA Green Bin
Program will be implemented, though specific details have not yet been
provided.

Resident-Owned Carts

CM continues to state that they are not responsible for the end-of-life
management of existing carts/bins that residents are currently using for this
program.

CM has no precedent for addressing these items from other municipalities.
While GFL stated that they may consider collecting boxes, it is still to be
determined whether they will retrieve old/unwanted carts from residents at
the time of new cart delivery.

Authority Administration has advised CM that they will need to communicate
clearly to residents on why they can’t use their existing cart, which may look
the same as the new CM cart for the 2026 program.

Excess Material Management

Residents must adhere to CM’s program guidelines, and materials must be
placed within the cart to be eligible for collection.

Additional cart eligibility will be assessed over two collection cycles, with a
supervisor attending on collection days to observe household set-out.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Circular
Materials Response Re Single Stream Recycling Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 27 of 47



Circular Materials Response Re. Single-Stream Recycling
August 28, 2025
Page 5 of 7

o Authority Administration expressed concern regarding delays between
assessment and resident notification, including:
o Potential for increased litter;
o Disposal of valuable recyclables in the garbage stream;
o Burden on residents to store excess materials while awaiting approval;
and
o Frustrated residents may stop participating in diversion programming.

« CM will reinforce through communication that excess materials, such as
bundled cardboard that doesn’t fit in the cart, will not be collected.

« CM suggested the use of Depots for overflow materials; however, Authority
Administration noted this may not be a viable option if funding for
“Convenience Depots” from CM is not approved again in 2026. Authority
Administration is still waiting for CM to confirm if they want to engage in an
agreement to use Authority Depots for their program.

Automated Collection & Operational Goals

« The transition to a cart-based system reinforces that the use of automated
collection methods is the future direction of residential waste management.

o Primary objective is to: reduce injuries associated with drivers
exiting/entering vehicles and/or manual lifting, improve driver recruitment
and retention to alleviate manpower challenges in the waste collection
industry.

« CM has recently identified that OOPS stickers will not be utilized in the cart-
based program and that Al-based contamination monitoring is being tested
across multiple vendors.

Accessibility

« Residents requiring accommodations may contact GFL directly; this will be
included in CM’s communications.

« The CM/RLG approach to accessibility requests will align with the
municipality’s existing practices, and accommodations provided for
garbage/organics.

o Contractors have been receptive to accessibility needs, and no major issues
have been reported or escalated.

Communications

« Authority Administration requested to be kept informed of all CM
communications on the Blue Box program that services Essex-Windsor.

« CM will ensure that messaging and updates will be issued directly to local
municipalities so that they are informed.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Circular
Materials Response Re Single Stream Recycling Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 28 of 47



Circular Materials Response Re. Single-Stream Recycling
August 28, 2025
Page 6 of 7

o Authority Administration reminded CM that relevant municipal contacts were
included in RPRA transition documents.

The meeting concluded with Authority Administration requesting that CM provide a
follow-up email confirming the above, as well as addressing all outstanding
responses and clarifications.

Although Administration has followed up with CM regarding the written response,
as of the writing of this report, none has been received. Given that CM has
previously changed course even after providing a written response, Administration
does not place full confidence in the consistency of their commitments.

Next Steps:

As the significant program change is scheduled to commence on January 1, 2026,
and while Authority Administration has included updates to municipal staff at the
regularly scheduled Municipal Working Group meetings. Authority Administration is
not aware of CM communicating directly with the City or any of the seven County
municipalities as of late regarding this change, despite previous requests for them
to do so.

Therefore, Authority Administration is requesting direction from the Board to
officially notify municipalities regarding this upcoming program change and
forward correspondence to the Clerks’ Departments of the City and each of the
seven County municipalities. This will ensure that they are formally advised of the
upcoming program changes and are provided with adequate time to contact CM
directly with any municipality-specific questions or concerns that may not have
been addressed through the Municipal Working Group or internal administrative
discussions.

CM has stated on multiple occasions that they are ultimately responsible for the
program and all program communications and that no action is required from the
municipalities. However, having administered the Blue Box program to local
municipalities for several decades, Authority Administration continues to believe it
is essential that municipalities are fully aware of the upcoming changes in case
they have any unique challenges or concerns.

Financial Implications

As previously communicated, there are no immediate financial implications at this
time, however, it should be noted that any recyclable material left curbside has a
strong likelihood of being set out with residential mixed waste (garbage). This will
result in increased tipping fees for the City of Windsor and seven County of Essex
local municipalities, as well as a potential increase in collection costs.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Circular
Materials Response Re Single Stream Recycling Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 29 of 47



Circular Materials Response Re. Single-Stream Recycling
August 28, 2025
Page 7 of 7

Further, since the majority of mixed waste is consolidated at the Authority’s
Transfer Stations, additional costs will be incurred to needlessly transport this
material, which will ultimately consume expensive airspace at the Essex-Windsor
Regional Landfill.

Recommendation

That the Board receive this report for information and direct Administration to
report back on the outcomes of the meetings referenced in this report at a future
meeting.

That the Board direct Authority Administration to provide the information
included in this report to the Clerk’s Department at the City of Windsor, County of
Essex and seven (7) County Municipalities, to be included as information to
municipal staff and councils.

Submitted By
Michelle Bishop, General Manager

Attachments:

e Letter to Circular Materials dated July 2, 2025

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Circular
Materials Response Re Single Stream Recycling Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 30 of 47



360 FAIRVIEW AVE. W., SUITE 211

ESSEX, ON N8M 3G4
1-800-563-3377
www.ewswa.org / ask@ewswa.org

ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

July 2, 2025

Sent by email: allen.langdon@circularmaterials.ca

Circular Materials Ontario

Attention: Allen Langdon, President & CEO
700-1 St. Clair Avenue

Toronto, ON

M4V 1K6

Dear Mr. Langdon,

Subject: Request for Additional Information Regarding Transition
to Single-Stream Recycling Collection in Essex-Windsor

Thank you for your letter dated May 23, 2025, in response to our earlier
correspondence regarding the transition of the Blue Box Program. We
appreciate your engagement and the information provided; however, several
significant concerns remain unresolved.

Resident-Owned Carts and Communication Inconsistencies

One of the Authority’s primary concerns remains the status of resident-
owned carts. As referenced in the attached correspondence from your
operations team to the Authority dated March 7, 2025, it was previously
confirmed that compatible, resident-owned carts would continue to be
serviced under the new program. This was also communicated verbally by
the Circular Materials (CM) operations team. This position is now
contradicted by your most recent letter, which states that only CM-issued
95-gallon carts will be collected.

This inconsistency is deeply concerning, many Essex-Windsor residents have
previously purchased carts at their own expense to support dual-stream
collection and will be understandably frustrated to learn that these are now
considered unusable under the new system.

As a potential resolution, the Authority recommends that residents be
permitted to continue using their existing carts, provided that the carts are
fully compatible with the automated collection system, which has always
been the message that the Authority promoted when it administered this
program. In these cases, residents would assume all responsibility for the

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Correspondence\2025 Correspondence\LETTER - Circular Materials Single Stream 2026 July 2 2025.docx
Page 1 of 4

Page 31 of 47


mailto:allen.langdon@circularmaterials.ca

Allen Langdon, President & CEO

Circular Materials

Request for Additional Information Regarding Transition to Single-Stream Recycling
Collection in Essex-Windsor

July 2, 2025

Page 2 of 4

condition and functionality of their carts, and any damage or service issues
would not be the responsibility of CM or its service providers. We believe this
approach strikes a reasonable balance between operational efficiency and
public fairness, while also reducing unnecessary waste.

Accessibility Considerations

The uniform provision of 95-gallon carts raises accessibility concerns.
Residents with mobility limitations, such as seniors, persons with disabilities,
or residents with narrow access points, may be unable to use carts of this
size safely or effectively. The recommendation to allow residents to continue
using their existing carts could help address some of these concerns.

It is standard practice among municipalities to offer smaller receptacles or
manual collection options to accommodate accessibility needs. We urge your
team to integrate a formal accessibility protocol into the transition and to
ensure transparent communication with both the Authority and the public
about available accommodations.

Excess Material, Large Households, and Cart Capacity

While we acknowledge that the 95-gallon cart offers greater capacity than
the traditional blue box, the suggestion that households with excess material
should store it until the next collection is not a viable or sustainable solution.
As previously noted, many households consistently generate more recycling
than a single 95-gallon cart can accommodate, particularly,

o Large and multi-generational families, which naturally generate more
packaging, containers, and printed paper;

« Households that experience seasonal surges in material volumes (e.g.,
during holidays or family events).

Under the Regulation:

« Section 22(c)(iii) requires that residents be provided a receptacle
that can ordinarily store all blue box material generated between
collections;

« Section 22(b) requires the collection of all blue box materials set out
on collection day.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Correspondence\2025 Correspondence\LETTER - Circular Materials Single Stream 2026 July 2 2025.docx

Page 32 of 47



Allen Langdon, President & CEO

Circular Materials

Request for Additional Information Regarding Transition to Single-Stream Recycling
Collection in Essex-Windsor

July 2, 2025

Page 3 of 4

Deferring the collection of excess material or denying the use of compatible,
resident-owned carts does not fulfill these obligations. While we recognize
your intent to offer additional carts through a request process, the lack of
clear timelines, eligibility criteria, and interim solutions is cause for concern.

Disposition of Obsolete Carts

With existing carts being rendered incompatible for use under the current
direction, the Authority requests a clear and coordinated plan for addressing
the thousands of resident-owned containers now considered obsolete. Some
potential initiatives may include:

o Curbside collection or drop-off events for cart recycling;
« Community reuse or repurposing initiatives;
o Guidance on safe and appropriate in-home or outdoor reuse.

Municipalities and residents would benefit from consistent messaging and
support on this issue.

Authority’s Role in Communications

To date, the Authority has supported CM in its communications to residents
regarding the transition to the new program, including helping to clarify
expectations and respond to public inquiries and has remained committed to
working collaboratively with your team to ensure a smooth, fair, and
regulation-compliant transition. However, given the current approach
outlined in your most recent response, particularly the refusal to allow use of
compatible resident-owned carts, the lack of a viable interim solution for
excess material, and insufficient accommodations for accessibility, the
Authority cannot, in good faith, continue to support or endorse these aspects
of the rollout. Doing so would conflict with our obligation to advocate for a
fair, compliant, and practical system for our residents.

The Authority looks forward to your response and further discussions and
collaborating with CM on communication efforts.

Should you require further information, please contact me by email at
mbishop@ewswa.org or by phone at (519) 776-6441 extension 1225.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Correspondence\2025 Correspondence\LETTER - Circular Materials Single Stream 2026 July 2 2025.docx

Page 33 of 47


mailto:mbishop@ewswa.org

Allen Langdon, President & CEO
Circular Materials

Request for Additional Information Regarding Transition to Single-Stream Recycling
Collection in Essex-Windsor

July 2, 2025
Page 4 of 4
Sincerely,
N Finn- dds
Michelle Bishop Gary McNamara Gary Kaschak

EWSWA General Manager EWSWA Board Chair EWSWA Board Vice Chair

cc. Andrew Dowie - MPP for Windsor-Tecumseh
Resource Productivity and Recovery Authority - info@rpra.ca

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Correspondence\2025 Correspondence\LETTER - Circular Materials Single Stream 2026 July 2 2025.docx

Page 34 of 47


mailto:info@rpra.ca

o
circular

materials
o=

Essex Windsor Solid Waste Authority (EWSWA)

Post-transition Blue Box Program Inquiries
Why Single Stream Programming

Q. What is the rationale for shifting to a single stream cart-based recycling collection system? Residents, board members,
partners, etc. will want to understand these benefits.

A. A shift to single stream collection service is aimed at increasing convenience and resident participation. This approach
increases blue box material capture at the curb while improving collection efficiency and safety for drivers.

Single Stream Programming Delay

Q. EWSWA is requesting that Circular Materials (CM) as the Common Collection System (CCS) Administrator investigate
opportunities to delay the transition of blue box recycling services from dual stream manual collection to single stream
automated collection from January 2026 to April 2026. EWSWA will be rolling out its Green Cart program within the same
timeframe as the Common Collection System (CCS) rolls out its Blue Cart program. The delay will:

e Help reduce the number of collection program changes introduced to residents within the same timeframe; and
o Allow alignment with EWSWA'’s waste collection calendar publication, which is April to March.

A. After careful consideration, we are confirming that a delay of moving from a dual stream to single stream recycling
system is not possible. The transition of blue box recycling services to single stream automated collection will occur on
January 1, 2026.

This is due to the fact that the manual dual stream trucks currently in use in EWSWA are scheduled for use elsewhere at
the end of December 2025. Without access to these dual stream vehicles, it is not possible to delay EWSWA's change over
to single stream carts.

Anticipated Routing Changes

Q. The city is working to eliminate waste collection in alleys with the new collection contract starting in 2025. Will CM as
the CCS Administrator and RLG as the CCS Operator support the city and align recycling collection locations outside these
alleys at the appropriate time?

A. CM and RLG and will work with the collection contractor to align collection points with the City’s wherever possible.
Please confirm you mean the City of Windsor as the affected Eligible Community? When will the list of affected addresses
be available for review with the contractor so that preparations may begin, including routing adjustments and promotion
and education (P&E)?

Promotion & Education Coordination

Q. If a delay to a single stream program is not possible, will CM work with the EWSWA to ensure clear communication to
residents? If the change over to cart-based programming for both recycling and Green Bins occurs at the same time,
EWSWA would like to ensure residents use the correct cart and follow the proper set out instructions for each program.

A. CM’s blue box program P&E efforts in Essex-Windsor will be a collaborative approach with EWSWA and the contractor,
and will include information on single stream blue box material set out, new collection days and more.

Our marketing team welcomes discussions with EWSWA to ensure our strategy/plan works in tandem with EWSWA’s
Green Bin messaging. Please note that Circular Materials’ scope is only blue box recycling, and it cannot include Green Bin
messaging in its P&E.

Collection Frequency & Cart Capacity

Q. Is EWSWA'’s blue box collection schedule moving to a weekly collection or staying bi-weekly to support the amount of
blue box that is currently being set-out at the curb in two-streams?

A. As of January 1, 2026, residents will continue to receive blue box collection on a bi-weekly schedule (i.e., 26 collections
annually). This collection frequency is consistent with the cart-based collection cadence used other large urban areas such

circularmaterials.ca 877-667-2626  700-1 St. Clair Avenue West, Toronto, Ontario M4V 1K6 1

Page 35 of 47



as the City of Toronto. As with other programs, these carts are expected to meet residents’ blue box containment needs
between collection cycles.

Continued Use of Existing Collection Containers

Q. Some EWSWA residents have two 95-gallon, or two 65-gallon recycling carts and fill both every collection cycle. Will
these households continue to be permitted to set out two containers, if two containers are required to manage the
volumes set out by residents?

A. GFL will be the collection contractor in 2026. GFL will assess residential curbside existing carts being used by the
resident and plan to signal to the resident if their cart is not compatible by leaving a sticker/tag indicating it will not be
compatible as of January 1, 2026. GFL and our marketing team will collaborate on this initiate to ensure the messaging is
clear to the resident. Further if more than one compatible cart (new 95-gallon cart delivered by GFL and compatible
existing resident carts) are at the curb at a household, GFL will collect the material through their automated cart system.

Q. Where a household (resident) has placed the GFL cart at the curb in addition to a second cart (already owned and used
by the resident as part of the dual stream program), will GFL collect both carts?

A. Yes, residents will be able to use their own carts if compatible per the previous question and answer.
Set out Instruction for Cardboard

Q. If there is additional cardboard bundled and placed at the curb (overage), will GFL collect the bundled cardboard along
with the single stream material in the full cart at the curb, correct?

A. We are in discussions with the Contractor to ensure the best practices are established. We will have more information
related to the final quarter of 2025.

Existing Inventory of Blue Boxes & Carts

Q. What is the plan for reuse/recycling of the recycling boxes/carts currently by residents that may not be compatible
with the new single stream automated collection program? How will CM be accountable to ensure that these valuable
resources are properly repurposed/recycled and ultimately does not go to the EWSWA Landfill.

A. CM will encourage residents to repurpose boxes for various uses such as storage.

circularmaterials.ca 877-667-2626  700-1 St. Clair Avenue West, Toronto, Ontario M4V 1K6 2

Page 36 of 47



ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
Administrative Report

September 2, 2025

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste
Authority
From: Michelle Bishop, General Manager

Meeting Date: n Wednesday, September 10, 2025

Subject: Non-Eligible Source Recycling Program Update

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with an update on the Non-
Eligible Source (NES) Blue Box Recycling Program.

Background

As directed by the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP),
the Essex-Windsor region transitioned the Blue Box program to an Extended
Producer Responsibility (EPR) model on August 28, 2024.

The transition to EPR did not include NESs such as municipal buildings, business
improvement areas, not-for-profits, post-secondary institutions and other
industrial, commercial and institutional (IC&I) facilities, etc.

Over the past few years, the Authority and Ontario municipalities have strongly
advocated to the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks, the
Resource Productivity and Recovery Authority, local Members of Parliament and
Circular Materials (CM) to reconsider their position regarding the inclusion of NESs
in the program, however, CM communicated that no changes will be considered.

On June 4, 2025, the MECP posted proposed amendments to the Resource
Recovery and Circular Economy Act, 2016, in response to stakeholder requests for
increased transparency and continued service to small businesses.

On June 26, 2025, the Authority received an email from Charles O’Hara, Director,
Resource Recovery Policy Branch, MECP. The email stated that the Minister has

Page 1 of 1
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Non-eligible
Source Recycling Program Update September 10 2025.docx

Page 37 of 47



Non-Eligible Source Recycling Program Update
September 2, 2025
Page 2 of 4

directed Producer Responsibility Organizations (PRO)s to prioritize providing offers
to municipalities that have provided Blue Box collection services to small IC&I
establishments during the transition period. This correspondence was included in
the July 10, 2025, agenda.

Discussion

On August 15, 2025, Authority Administration participated in a webinar hosted by
CM. The presentation by CM stated that the “Service Proposal” being presented
was in response to the MECP’s June 4, 2025, posted proposed amendments to the
Resource Recovery and Circular Economy Act, 2016, as a result of stakeholder
requests for increased transparency and continued service to small businesses.

In the presentation, CM identified the challenges they had in offering IC&I Services
under the residential EPR framework system. These challenges included the
impacts on existing contracts, timelines, and capacity issues. CM designed the
Common Collection System (CCS) to collect and receive blue box material only
from eligible sources (e.g., residential dwellings). By servicing NESs, the
additional material will utilize: the collection vehicle, depot hauling vehicle, and the
receiving facility and/or processing capacity. CM states that this additional service
may impact their ability to service existing and natural growth eligible sources, as
well as meet regulatory obligations.

The following summarizes the terms of the proposal presented by CM:

Program commencement date - the Blue Box services proposed were organized
into groups based on the current collection service:

e Essex-Windsor would be considered “"Subgroup 1B: Small IC&I in eligible
communities that historically provided curbside collection service to
businesses but declined CCS services for these businesses during the
transition period.”

e Since the NES program is not currently part of the collection program CM
has stated that the earliest service commencement date would be
September 1, 2026.

Eligibility Criteria - The following eligibility criteria, as determined by CM, were
included in the presentation:

e Located on a curbside collection route and serviceable without change to
collection vehicles, frequency or routes, receiving facilities or processing
facilities;

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Non-eligible
Source Recycling Program Update September 10 2025.docx

Page 38 of 47



Non-Eligible Source Recycling Program Update
September 2, 2025
Page 3 of 4

Set out Blue Box Material (BBM) for curbside collection in a similar form and
quantity as BBM set out for collection by a single-family household (e.g., no
large format items);

In cart-based collection systems, one 95-gallon (360L) cart is collected
every other week, as applicable for the collection schedule in the EC; or

In box-based collection systems, two 80L blue boxes (160L combined);
Stops are no more than 2% of total eligible source, single-family stops.

Program Cost - The CCS Administrator is working to determine the cost to be
charged to eligible communities for IC&I services. The cost will include the
following components:

Curbside collection

Depot collection

Hauling from the depot to the receiving facility
Receiving facility costs

Hauling from the receiving facility to processing facilities
Processing

Promotion and education

Call centre/customer service

Small IC&I and larger IC&I agreement oversight (including field services
monitoring)

Administration

Conclusion

On August 27, 2025, the General Manager participated in a meeting with the
Regional Public Works Commissioners of Ontario, Waste Sub-Committee (RPWCO)
to draft a response to CM. The following areas of concern will be identified as part
of the response. The initial round table discussion identified the following
concerns:

1.

Impractical Service Caps for Small Businesses

o The proposed "Two Blue Box / One Cart cap" per NES location is not
practical.
« Capacities vary widely, and many sites generate more recyclables than
this allows.
« This cap could:
o Disrupt collection routes, especially in BIAs.
o Lead to recyclable materials being discarded in the garbage or causing
litter.
o Require municipalities to create separate agreements for small
businesses.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Non-eligible

Source Recycling Program Update September 10 2025.docx

Page 39 of 47



Non-Eligible Source Recycling Program Update
September 2, 2025
Page 4 of 4

2.

Lack of a Costed, Complete Offer, Cost Transparency and Fairness Concerns

Municipalities are expected to commit to agreements without a finalized,

costed offer or timeline for when one will be provided. This lack of clarity:

o Prevents councils and boards from making informed decisions;

o Raises concerns about fairness, transparency, and justification of
costs; and

o Risks non-participation if costs are not reasonable, proportionate, or
comparable to residential collection services.

Without clear costs, terms, or timelines, municipalities cannot seek

informed council/board approval.

Rigid Participation Threshold

The 2% cap on participating properties does not allow for natural growth
or demand.

This could lead to service inequities and potential withdrawals.

A more scalable, performance-based approach is needed.

Limited Flexibility and Lack of Collaboration

The proposal shows minimal flexibility and limited collaboration with
municipalities.

Municipal realities and governance timelines need to be factored in
moving forward.

Along with the above, the RPWCO group has also noted concerns regarding CM’s
unclear assumptions used to develop the proposal.

As of the writing of this report, Administration has provided feedback on the
RPWCO response and is awaiting the financial information from CM.

Recommendation

That the Board receive this report as information.

Submitted By
A nE-

Michelle Bishop, General Manager

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - Non-eligible

Source Recycling Program Update September 10 2025.docx

Page 40 of 47



ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
Administrative Report

August 25, 2025

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste
Authority
From: Steffan Brisebois, Manager of Finance and Administration

Meeting Date: ¥ Wednesday, September 10, 2025

Subject: January to June 2025 - Six-Month Operations Financial
Review

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to present a six-month financial review of the operating
costs and revenue, comparing estimated results to the 2025 Operational Plan and
Budget figures.

Background

At the July 9, 2025, Board meeting, Administration identified a significant decrease
in the amount of Industrial, Commercial and Institutional (IC&I) tonnages due to
the reduction of greenhouse vines and other growing medium delivered for
disposal. As a result, IC&I revenues have decreased when compared to the
budget.

Other financial figures that were impacted as a result of the decrease in material
were host compensation expenditures and the amount contributed to the Regional
Landfill Reserve.

Included in the 2025 Operating Plan and Budget, a portion of the increased tipping
fee for greenhouse vines and other growing media was to be directly contributed
to the Regional Landfill Reserve to fund long-term leachate management on the
site due to the impact of the material on operations.

Page 1 of 6
H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - January to June
2025 - 6 Month Operations Financial Review September 10 2025.docx

Page 41 of 47



January to June 2025- 6 Month Operations Fin
August 25, 2025
Page 2 of 5

ancial Review

Discussion

The following tables present estimated operating revenue and expenses for the

period January 1 to June 30, 2025,

Revenue

compared to the 2025 Budget figures.

January to BEL TE]Q A {o] Variance

June 2025 June 2025 Favourable

Budget Estimate (Unfavourable)

Municipal Refuse - Tipping Fees $2,360,300 $2,360,300 $0
Municipal Organics - Tipping Fees $280,100 $288,500 $8,400
I/C/I Refuse Landfilled - Tipping $4,370,000 $2,997,400 ($1,372,600)
Fees

I/C/I - Non-landfilled - Tipping $525,000 $525,000 $0
Fees

Residential Refuse - Tipping Fees $327,600 $395,800 $68,200
Residential $7 Min. Fee - Tipping $159,400 $67,900 ($91,500)
Fees

Municipal Allocation of Fixed $5,396,700 $5,396,700 $0
Costs

Product Stewardship Funding $80,000 $78,500 ($1,500)
Other Revenue $1,506,300 $1,662,700 $156,400

Total Revenue

Expenses

$15,005,400 $13,772,800 ($1,232,600)

BEL TE]QVA {o] BE TETQ A {o] Variance
June 2025 June 2025 Favourable

Budget Estimate (Unfavourable)

Committee Expenses $7,000 $2,300 $4,700
Administration $1,148,700 $1,135,500 $13,200
Realty $62,800 $70,000 ($7,200)
Recycling $985,800 $998,200 ($12,400)
Hazardous or Special Product $300,700 $312,400 ($11,700)
Waste

Green Bin $141,300 $141,300 $0
Waste Reduction $636,400 $636,400 $0
Advertising & Public Education $198,000 $194,300 $3,700
Regional Landfill $4,103,500 $3,647,300 $456,200
Transfer Station #1 - Windsor $1,242,400 $1,240,900 $1,500

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1l - Reports\2025 Reports to t

he Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - January to June
2025 - 6 Month Operations Financial Review September 10 2025.docx

Page 42 of 47



January to June 2025- 6 Month Operations Financial Review
August 25, 2025

Page 3 of 5
BEL TE]QVA {o] BE [TETQVA {o] Variance

Expenses June 2025 June 2025 Favourable

Budget Estimate (Unfavourable)
Transfer Station #2 - Kingsville $454,700 $473,700 ($19,000)
Public Drop-Off Depot - $763,400 $779,800 ($16,400)
Windsor
Regional Landfill Other $625,400 $625,400 $0
Regional Landfill Compensation $1,747,400 $1,239,800 $507,600
Regional Landfill Debenture $3,133,430 $3,133,430 $0
Total Expenditures $15,550,930 $14,630,730 $920,200

Total Excess of Expenditures Variance

over Revenues (Unfavourable)

January to June 2025

Operating (Deficit) ($312,400)

Variance
Favourable
(Unfavourable)

Budgeted Actual
Tonnes Tonnes

Landfilled Tonnes

January to June 2025 130,100 109,300 (20,800)
Operating Revenue

Overall, the estimated January to June 2025 revenue is approximately
($1,232,600) less than budgeted.

Municipal Tip Fee Revenue - Refuse

A total of 54,900 tonnes of municipal refuse was received in the first six months.
No significant variances were realized in the first six-month of 2025 within the
municipal tipping fee revenues.

Industrial/Commercial/Institutional Tip Fee Revenue - Landfilled
Material

ICI tip fee revenue from landfilled types of material is ($1,372,600) less than
budgeted due to lesser-than-expected tonnages.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - January to June
2025 - 6 Month Operations Financial Review September 10 2025.docx

Page 43 of 47



January to June 2025- 6 Month Operations Financial Review
August 25, 2025
Page 4 of 5

A six-month tonne variance is summaries in the table below:

o January January Variance
Description to June to June Favourable

2025 2025 (Unfavourable)
Budget Estimate QL LTES)
(Tonnes) (Tonnes)

Industrial, 72,334 51,065 (21,269) ($1,372,600)
Commercial or
Institutional Waste

Operating Expenditures

Overall, the estimated January to June 2025 expenditures are approximately
$920,200 less than budgeted. Most expenditures were within their budget in the
first six months, with the exception of the following:

The Regional Landfill Host Compensation decreased due to fewer tonnes of
landfillable material than what had been budgeted. The favourable variance
amounted to $507,600.

The Regional Landfill program has a favourable variance of $456,200, which was
primarily due to a reduction in contributions made to the Regional Landfill Reserve
for future long-term leachate management expenditures. This material variance
was identified and discussed at the July 7, 2025 Board meeting.

While this is a favourable variance, the reduced contribution to the Regional
Landfill Reserve will have a significant impact on future budgets as a result of the
reduced funds available to support initiatives such as long-term leachate
management and landfill gas wellfield expansions.

Operating Summary

The approved 2025 budget included a total budgeted deficit of ($352,525) of
which ($545,530) was expected to be incurred in the first six months of
operations, with a July to December budgeted surplus of $193,005. The six-month
financial review indicates an estimated deficit of ($857,930) for the January to
June period. Therefore, there is an estimated six-month unfavourable variance of
($312,400) to the budget.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - January to June
2025 - 6 Month Operations Financial Review September 10 2025.docx

Page 44 of 47



January to June 2025- 6 Month Operations Financial Review
August 25, 2025
Page 5 of 5

Financial Implications

The projection for the full 2025 fiscal year will form part of the 2026 Operating
Plan and Budget document, which will be presented to the Authority Board at the
November 2025 meeting.

Recommendation
THAT the Board receive this report as information.

Submitted By

Steffan Brisebois, Manager of Finance and Administration

H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - Reports\2025 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\Reports to EWSWA Board\REPORT - January to June
2025 - 6 Month Operations Financial Review September 10 2025.docx

Page 45 of 47



ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
By-Law Number 14-2025

Being a By-Law to Authorize the Execution of an Agreement
with 2044970 Ontario Inc. o/a All Season Excavating for the
Regional Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion
with an upset limit in the amount of $518,136.70 (plus HST).

Whereas the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority has approved entering into an
Agreement with 2044970 Ontario Inc. o/a All Season Excavating for the Regional

Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion with an upset limit in the amount of
$518,136.70 (plus HST).

Now Therefore the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (EWSWA) enacts as
follows:

1. THAT EWSWA hereby approves a contract with 2044970 Ontario Inc.
o/a All Season Excavating for the Regional Landfill Gas Collection
System Expansion with an upset limit in the amount of $518,136.70
(plus HST) and that the Chair and General Manager be authorized to
enter into an agreement in accordance with the tender documents.

THIS By-Law shall take effect upon the final passing thereof.

Gary McNamara
EWSWA Board Chair

Michelle Bishop
General Manager

Read a First, Second and Third Time, Enacted and Passed This 10t Day of
September 10, 2025.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - By-Laws and Agreements\BY-LAWS\2025 By-Laws\14-2025 By-law Authorize Agreement All
Season Excavating RL LFG Expansion Sept 10 2025.docx

Page 46 of 47



ewswa

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
By-Law Number 15-2025

Being a By-law to Confirm the Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board
of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority

WHEREAS by Agreement dated 18 May 1994, made between the Corporation of the
County of Essex and the Corporation of the City of Windsor, the Essex-Windsor Solid
Waste Authority (The Authority) was created as a joint board of management pursuant
to Sections 207.5 and 209.19 of the Municipal Act, RSO 1990, Chapter M.45 and;

WHEREAS Subsection 5.(3) of the Municipal Act, RSO 2001, Chapter 25, provides that
the powers of a municipality shall be exercised by By-Law and;

WHEREAS Section 1 of the Municipal Act RSO 1990, Chapter M 46 defines a
municipality as including a board, commission or other local authority exercising any
power with respect to municipal affairs or purposes and;

WHEREAS it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Authority at this meeting
be confirmed and adopted by By-Law

NOW THEREFORE the members of the Authority enact as follows:

1) The action of the members of the Authority in respect to each recommendation
contained in the Report/Reports of the Committees and each motion and
resolution passed and other action taken by the members of the Authority at this
meeting is hereby adopted and confirmed as if all such proceedings were expressly
set out in this by-law.

2) The Chair and the proper officials of the Authority are hereby authorized and
directed to do all things necessary to give effect to the action of the members of
the Authority referred to in the preceding section hereof.

3) The Chair and the General Manager of the Authority are authorized and directed to
execute all documents necessary in that behalf.

Gary McNamara
EWSWA Board Chair

Michelle Bishop
General Manager

Read a First, Second and Third Time, Enacted and Passed This 10t" Day of
September 10, 2025.

H:\EWSWA\everyone\l - By-Laws and Agreements\BY-LAWS\2025 By-Laws\15-2025 Confirmatory By-Law EWSWA Board Meeting
September 10 2025.docx

Page 47 of 47



	September 10 2025 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Agenda 
	1. Call to Order
	2. Motion to Move In-Camera
	3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
	4. Approval of the Minutes
	July 9, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 
	July 9 2025 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting MINUTES
	1. Call to Order
	2. Motion to Move In-Camera
	3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
	4. Approval of the Minutes
	5. Business Arising from the Minutes
	6. Correspondence
	June 26, 2025 email from Charles O'Hara – Director, Resource Recovery Policy Branch Environmental Policy Division, Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks Re: Proposed Amendments to the Resource Recovery and Circular Economy Act, 2016 and Planning for Small IC&I Collection

	7. Delegations
	Brent Langille, B.Sc., P.Geo., QPESA, Senior Technical Director / Principal, RWDI Presentation Regional Landfill: Leachate Management

	8. Waste Disposal
	Regional Landfill Reverse Osmosis Leachate Treatment Plant Status and Next Steps

	9. Waste Diversion
	2025 Green Bin Program: Promotion & Education (P&E) Update

	10. Finance & Administration
	20252026 EWSWA Insurance
	2025 SixMonth Update – IC&I Tipping Fee & Tonnage
	Procurement Policy EW008 Revision

	11. New Business
	12. Other Items
	13. By-Laws
	ByLaw 132025

	14. Next Meeting Dates
	15. Adjournment



	5. Business Arising from the Minutes
	6. Correspondence
	7. Delegations
	8. Waste Disposal
	Tender award for the Regional Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion
	REPORT - Tender Award Landfill Gas Collection System Expansion at Regional Landfill Sept 10 2025
	Administrative Report
	Purpose
	Background
	Discussion
	Financial Implications
	Recommendation
	Submitted By




	9. Waste Diversion
	2025 Green Bin Program: Promotion & Education Update 
	REPORT - 2025 Green Bin Program P&E Update Sept 10 2025
	Administrative Report
	Purpose
	Background
	Discussion
	Financial Implications
	Recommendation
	Submitted By
	Campaign 4 Summary: Green Bin Collection Begins!



	Circular Material Response Re: Single Stream Recycling 
	REPORT - Circular Materials Response Re Single Stream Recycling Sept 10 2025
	Administrative Report
	Purpose
	Background
	Discussion
	Cart Compatibility
	Requests for Additional Carts
	Blue Box (BB) Repair and Request Program (New)
	Resident-Owned Carts
	Excess Material Management
	Automated Collection & Operational Goals
	Accessibility
	Communications

	Financial Implications
	Recommendation

	LETTER - Circular Materials Single Stream 2026 July 2 2025.pdf
	Subject: Request for Additional Information Regarding Transition to Single-Stream Recycling Collection in Essex-Windsor



	NonEligible Source Recycling Program Update
	REPORT - Non-eligible Source Recycling Program Update September 10 2025
	Administrative Report
	Purpose
	Background
	Discussion
	Conclusion
	Recommendation
	Submitted By




	10. Finance & Administration
	Six-month Operations Financial Review January to June 2025 
	REPORT - January to June 2025 - 6 Month Operations Financial Review September 10 2025
	Administrative Report
	Purpose
	Background
	Discussion
	Operating Revenue
	Municipal Tip Fee Revenue – Refuse
	Industrial/Commercial/Institutional Tip Fee Revenue – Landfilled Material

	Operating Expenditures
	Operating Summary
	Financial Implications
	Recommendation
	Submitted By




	11. New Business
	12. Other Items
	13. By-Laws
	ByLaw 14-2025 
	14-2025 By-law Authorize Agreement All Season Excavating RL LFG Expansion Sept 10 2025
	Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
	By-Law Number 14-2025


	ByLaw 15-2025 
	15-2025 Confirmatory By-Law EWSWA Board Meeting September 10 2025
	Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
	By-Law Number 15-2025



	14. Next Meeting Dates
	15. Adjournment




